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Frequently Asked Questions

Request for Proposals: Building a Community-Driven Portrait of a High School Graduate

Who Can Apply? 

Who is eligible to apply for this opportunity?

We welcome applications from communities that work with at least one public high school (any 
public governance structure); include a minimum of 100 high school students across 
participating high schools; include a high school population that is at least 50% high needs 
students (composite rate of at least 50% across all high schools included); and that serve 
students in the New England states of Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island, or Vermont. 

Who can submit the grant application as the Lead Applicant?

The Lead Applicant must either be a local education agency (LEA), like a school district or charter 
management organization (CMO), or a 510(c)(3) (nonprofit organization) that is a member of 
the community (see p. 2 of this FAQ for more on this). The Lead Applicant will also serve as one 
of the Core Facilitators.

Is the Lead Applicant also the fiscal agent? 

Yes, the Lead Applicant must be the fiscal agent.

Are charter and magnet schools eligible to apply? 

All public school governance options are eligible to apply for this RFP opportunity, as long as 
they meet the other eligibility criteria. Private schools are not eligible for funding under this 
opportunity.

Is this RFP applicable to a school that includes more than just grades 9-12 (for example, a K-12 or 7-12 
school)? 

Yes, as long as the high school population included in the proposal (across 1 or more high 
schools) includes a minimum of 100 students and meets the other eligibility criteria, schools that 
include grades in addition to 9-12 are eligible to apply.
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While the focus is on high school, can a community build a portrait of a graduate that includes grades 
other than 9-12? 

Yes, engaging the community to think about vertical alignment across elementary and/or middle 
schools as well as high schools is welcome, as long as the eligibility requirements are met for the 
high school population(s).

The RFP says the community must include a high school population that is at least 50% high needs 
students, defined as students designated as low income, economically disadvantaged, a current or 
former English language learner, or a student with disabilities. 

Does this requirement refer to data at the school level or at the district/CMO level?

The 50% high needs eligibility requirement is for the high school population included in 
the proposal (across 1 or more high schools).

If a high school that does not meet this requirement partners with a high school that does, 
would the two schools be eligible to apply together?

In order to meet the eligibility requirement, the composite rate of high needs students 
across all participating high schools must be at least 50%. 

How is the composite rate calculated?

The composite rate is calculated by dividing the total number of high-needs students 
across all high schools included in the proposal by the total number of students across 
all high schools included in the proposal. For example, suppose there are two high 
schools applying together for the RFP. High school #1 has 89 students out of 153 
students designated as high-needs, and high school #2 has 47 out of 111 students 
designated as high needs. To calculate whether the two high schools meet the 50% 
high-needs eligibility requirement, divide the total number of high-needs students 
across both high schools by the total number of students across both high schools: 
(89+47) ÷ (153+111) = 0.52. 52% of students across the two high schools are designated 
as high-needs. Therefore, the two high schools are eligible if they apply together.

Can a high school that does not meet this requirement partner with a middle school that does, 
in order to reach a composite rate of 50% high needs students?

The 50% high needs students must be at the high school level, so combining with the 
middle school would not meet this requirement. 

Are rural schools considered high needs? 

We are using the Massachusetts definition of high-needs students, which does not 
specify a particular type of community. If a rural community meets the 50% high needs 
student eligibility requirement for the high school population included in the proposal, 
they are welcome to apply. 
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The RFP says if the Lead Applicant is a 501(c)(3), it must be based in the community. What does this 
mean?

If a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization is the Lead Applicant (as opposed to the LEA as the Lead 
Applicant), that nonprofit organization needs to be focused on work in that community and be a 
member of that community. This may not be a physical presence (for example, in the case of 
some regional organizations), but the intent is to keep the process local (so that, for example, a 
national organization would not be leading a local community engagement effort.) However, 
national organizations would be welcome to partner in the portrait of a graduate process as 
Working Group members, project managers, research supports, or in other roles.

Is a community that has already started work on a portrait of a graduate or a similar process still 
eligible to apply?

Yes, communities that may have already been doing some planning and design work are eligible 
to apply if they are interested in stepping back to engage in the deep community planning and 
anchoring process that is enabled by this opportunity. If communities have begun some work 
toward a portrait of a graduate, successful proposals will explain how applicants expect this 
particular opportunity would shape the work differently and impact it more deeply than would 
have been possible otherwise. This would not be the right opportunity for a community that has 
an existing portrait of a graduate and is not open to changes or community input. 

Are current Barr grantees eligible to apply?

If you are a current Barr grantee, please reach out to PortraitOfAGrad@barrfoundation.org and 
we can discuss your eligibility for this opportunity.

Key Activities 

What is the estimated time commitment for Core Facilitators and Working Team members?

The Core Facilitators will be key champions for the project, including participating in all learning 
community events and leading the Working Team and other stakeholder engagement efforts. 
Based on what we've seen as necessary commitments from other work, we are expecting that 
Core Facilitators should plan to dedicate at least 20 hours per month (or around 5 hours per 
week) to organizing and leading this work throughout the grant period, with about ½ day per 
month of that time dedicated specifically to engagement in the learning community. Working 
Team members should also expect to dedicate at least 8 to 10 hours per month (or 2 - 2 ½ hours 
per week) to regular planning and meetings. These are not required minimum hours, nor are 
they maximum hours. The main purpose is to ensure that your team has set aside the time and 
budget resources needed for this important work throughout the grant period.

mailto:PortraitOfAGrad@barrfoundation.org
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Can the 2-3 Core Facilitators be school staff, or is the expectation that at least one Core Facilitator be 
a community member?

There is flexibility for each community/applicant to decide who is the best fit for the Core 
Facilitator roles. Successful applicants will demonstrate their commitment to both the depth of 
the project and to the community engagement aspect of the work through the selection of the 
Core Facilitators. One of the 2-3 Core Facilitators must be the Lead Applicant, and at least one 
must be a representative from the school leadership team (which could be the same person). 

In applications that involve partnerships across multiple schools, would each school have its own 
team, or would there be one combined team?

If the application includes multiple schools, the intent is collaboration across those schools, so 
we would expect a combined team. This means there would still be 2-3 Core Facilitators, with 
perhaps a larger Working Group than a single high school might have. Partnerships among 
multiple schools would also be welcome to create sub-committees or other group 
configurations to organize their work.

What supports will be provided to grantees during the grant year period?

Grantees will form a cohort learning community, and each team’s 2-3 Core Facilitators will serve 
as the main representatives in the learning community. The learning community design will be 
responsive to grantees’ needs and will support teams through the arc of establishing a working 
team, researching current graduate outcomes, exploring existing student outcome frameworks, 
and creating the portrait of a graduate and an aligned action plan. The learning community is 
tentatively scheduled to include two in-person convenings, multiple virtual work group 
opportunities led by national experts, and at least one national school tour. 

What outcomes/outputs will be expected of grantees?

All applicants will develop outputs and outcomes as part of their proposal. At a minimum, please 
include the following topics (including how they will be measured by your team), and refer to 
Barr’s guidance on developing strong outputs and outcomes: 1. Stakeholder engagement 
activities 2. Completion of an examination of gaps in graduates’ readiness for college, career, 
and community that results in an increased understanding of the challenge 3. National review of 
existing student outcome frameworks and exemplary high school portraits of a graduate 4. 
Creation of the portrait of the graduate 5. Development of a community-owned action plan of 
next steps for using the portrait of a graduate to drive decisions about policy and practice. 

If an application includes multiple high schools, will the schools build one collective portrait of a 
graduate, or can they each build different portraits? 

An application that includes multiple high schools should clearly demonstrate the reasoning 
behind their partnership in this opportunity, and why it makes sense for the schools and 
communities to build one collective portrait of a graduate. However, the portrait of a graduate 
could include, for example, broader competencies that each school might enact slightly 

https://barrfdn-prod.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/230/attachments/Grantee_Output_and_Outcomes_Guide_Final_Draft_Aug_2018.pdf?1536772896


Updated 8/22/19 Page 5 of 8

differently given their unique context. Additionally, the action plans developed through this 
opportunity might include some different next steps for each school, depending on the 
community’s needs.

Since this RFP is a planning-oriented grant with the opportunity to potentially apply for 
implementation funding at a later time, to what degree should applicants describe plans to 
implement and measure their vision?

This particular opportunity is about deep planning and community engagement. Therefore, 
outputs and outcomes should be focused on the planning process within the grant period, and 
not on measuring the vision beyond developing the action plan. 

Use of Grant Funds 

What can the grant funds be used for, and what can they not be used for?

Funds may be used for a variety of purposes. Examples include, but are not limited to: Stipends 
for Working Team members, including teachers, families, students, etc.; facilitation or project 
management support from external organizations; meetings and community gatherings; 
learning tours/travel to site visits; internal or contracted analyst to support data collection 
and/or analysis; stakeholder focus groups (e.g. current students, graduates, etc.); and design 
and production of materials for external communication. Participation in the facilitated learning 
community, and access to the learning community expert technical assistance providers, will be 
supported directly by the Barr Foundation and does not need to be included in the budget 
proposal. The learning community will include at least two in-person convenings and one 
national school visit; the costs associated with travel and participation in these visits will be 
covered by the foundation directly. Funds may not be used for ongoing operating costs of any 
school or program, nor can the funds be used on facilities-related expenses. Please refer to p. 8 
of the RFP for additional detail. 

Can external consultants or organizations that the Lead Applicant currently works with be included in 
the budget to provide technical assistance?

Yes, grant funds can be budgeted for external consultants and technical assistance of different 
types, including organizations with whom applicants already work or have worked. However, 
successful applicants will clearly describe how this opportunity would support work with the 
technical assistance partner that would not be occurring otherwise and that is clearly aligned 
with the project.

Can you recommend external consultants or organizations for communities to work with?

We do not endorse specific consultants or organizations for communities to work with. We 
strongly encourage robust exploration and vetting of potential partners. Additionally, other 
grantees in the learning community might be a helpful source of information about potential 
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consultants or organizations. The budget template and narrative can include placeholder funds 
for this work if communities would like to explore potential consultants or organizations after 
the grant period has begun.

Is there guidance regarding the appropriate amount of support to request in the $50,000 to $250,000 
range? Is there an expectation of number of the students impacted in a $50,000 vs. a $250,000 grant?

We are not thinking about different funding parameters for different numbers of students 
served. In developing your budget, we encourage you to think about your specific community 
that will be involved in this process, and what resources you will need in order to facilitate a 
robust process with them across all the grant activities. This amount will likely be different 
depending on factors like your geographic range, if you’re a single high school or working with 
multiple schools, and the size of your stakeholder group, for example. 

Would it be acceptable to focus on certain fields, like STEM, for the portrait of a graduate?

Successful applicants will engage in a process to develop a robust, holistic portrait of a graduate 
that is aligned with postsecondary readiness regardless of the field or path a student pursues 
after high school. As part of a community-driven process, the community may decide to include 
particular areas of emphasis in the portrait, but those areas should not be determined in 
advance.

How Will Funding Decisions be Made? 

Will proposals that involve partnerships or multiple high schools receive higher priority for funding 
than a single high school?

No, we are not giving preference to any type of applicant. Any school(s) and communities that 
are eligible and ready to engage in this work are welcome to apply, from a single high school to 
a regional approach. 

Will there be a specific geographic distribution of awards? Is there a priority location for funding?

No, we will not give priority by location, nor do we aim to make a specific geographic 
distribution of grants. All communities that are located in New England (Connecticut, 
Massachusetts, Maine, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, or Vermont) and meet the other 
eligibility criteria are welcome to apply.

Will preference be given to applicants based on the number of students served by the participating 
school(s)?

No, there will not be preference given based only on the number of students served. To 
optimize the impact of this opportunity, applicants must serve at least 100 students at the high 
school level across the participating schools.
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*New Which populations should be represented in the Diversity Data Form?

The Diversity Data Form is an optional document intended to provide information only on the 
Lead Applicant’s organization. The RFP was updated to reflect this document as optional on 
8/22/19. If applicants do choose to complete the form, we understand that the categories may 
not necessarily align with job titles in LEAs. Applicants can use the “Comments” box to provide 
additional explanation.  

Is there a rubric available to assess our application prior to submission?

We take a multifaceted approach to making funding recommendations, which includes review 
of the proposal and potential follow-up with applicants. While we are not publishing a rubric, we 
are looking for thoughtful answers to the narrative questions in your application around your 
community’s specific context and needs, your ideas for stakeholder engagement, your reasoning 
for choosing your 2-3 Core Facilitators, and your interest in the learning community. A successful 
application will also contain a well-thought-out budget that makes a case for the resources 
you’ll need to do the work well. 

What is the process and timeline for funding decisions?

Grant proposals are due by August 30th at 4 p.m. Following proposal submissions, we will 
conduct an internal review process in which every proposal is read by multiple reviewers. In late 
September, we may contact certain applicants as follow-up. Please note that contact from Barr 
at this phase of the proposal review process does not constitute notification or guarantee of an 
award. Award notification will occur on December 5, and the grant period will be December 
2019 - December 2020.

Support and Resources

Can you share examples of schools that have successfully built a portrait of a graduate?

Our January 2019 portrait of a graduate blog includes some helpful examples, as well as a link to 
the December 2018 webinar we held as an open learning opportunity on this topic.

Do you have a list of recommended schools to visit for learning tours?

Locally-determined learning tour locations do not need to be established at the time of the 
application. The budget template and narrative can include placeholder funds for learning tours 
above and beyond the learning community national tour. The learning community will be a 
resource for suggesting school tours that may be a good fit to team interests and goals. Finally, 
the national organization Springpoint publishes a "Schools to Visit" guide that may provide 
inspiration and ideas.

https://www.barrfoundation.org/blog/defining-using-a-portrait-of-a-graduate
https://www.springpointschools.org/media/2018/07/Springpoint_Learning-from-Great-Practice-Schools-to-Visit-in-2019_April2019FINAL.pdf
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If there are different groups in a broader community looking at this RFP, will Barr facilitate 
connections among potential applicants?

Unfortunately, due to the competitive RFP application process, we do not facilitate partnership 
opportunities or endorse organizations/LEAs for communities to partner with. However, we 
strongly encourage robust exploration and vetting of potential partners.

Can you provide additional guidance about the length and required sections of grant proposals?

The five required sections within the grant proposal are: Organization Information for the Lead 
Applicant, Proposal Narrative (approximate length should be 5-7 pages), Outputs and Outcomes, 
Budget Narrative (template provided), and Organizational Requirements (separate documents). 
Please see pages 9-11 of the RFP for the specific questions and requirements within the 
sections. We are not recommending any specific format for the Proposal Narrative or Outputs 
and Outcomes sections, and are open to whatever works best for applicants to best 
communicate their responses.

Is the required diversity data form for the community population, the population of the specific 
school(s), or for the Lead Applicant?

The diversity form applies to the Lead Applicant’s organization.

Are there similar opportunities available for communities that are not eligible for this RFP?

We do not currently have similar RFP opportunities available, but we always welcome inquiries 
from those who feel their work may align with Barr’s Education strategies. The best approach is 
to email education@barrfoundation.org with a brief description (we suggest 300–400 words) of 
your organization and the funding opportunity you would like us to consider. Given the high 
volume of inquiries we receive and a relatively small staff, it may take a few weeks to hear back 
from our Education team.

Who can I contact if I have a question that wasn’t answered here?

Please email us at PortraitOfAGrad@barrfoundation.org or register for office hours here. You 
can also review the July 16 webinar recording here. 

mailto:PortraitOfAGrad@barrfoundation.org
https://forms.gle/PwCWhaqsLR1ogW5X6
https://vimeo.com/barrfdn

